

## EIGHTEENTH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Monday, March 3, 1975

The Senate met at 11:30 o'clock a.m. and was called to order by the President.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Father Kenneth F. Ludescher.

The roll being called, the following Senators answered to their names:

Arnold	Conzemius	Josefson	Moe	Renneke
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf
Bang	Doty	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz
Berg	Dunn	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Bernhagen	Fitzsimons	Kleinbaum	Olhott	Solon
Blatz	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Borden	Gearty	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Brataas	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Brown	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Stumpf
Chenoweth	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Chmielewski	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Coleman	Jensen	Milton	Purfuerst	Willet

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

## MEMBERS EXCUSED

Messrs. Anderson, Hughes, Patton, Pillsbury and Sillers were excused from the Session of today. Messrs. Fitzsimons and Knutson were excused from the early part of today's Session.

## EXECUTIVE AND OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS

February 21, 1975

The Honorable Alec Olson  
President of the Senate  
State of Minnesota

Dear Sir:

The following appointments to the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency are hereby submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Harold Field, 5117 Emerson Avenue South, Minneapolis, Hen-

nepin County, effective February 15, 1975, for a term expiring January 15, 1979.

Carol Buckmann, Nisswa, Crow Wing County, effective February 15, 1975, for a term expiring January 15, 1979.

Sincerely,  
Wendell R. Anderson, Governor

February 25, 1975

The Honorable Alec Olson  
President of the Senate  
State of Minnesota

Dear Sir:

The following appointments to the State Board of Human Rights are hereby submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Mrs. Stella Jensen, Elkton, Mower County, effective January 1, 1975, for a term expiring January 1, 1978.

Vincent Kubiak, 966 Hawthorne Avenue East, St. Paul, Ramsey County, effective January 1, 1975, for a term expiring January 1, 1978.

Reverend Bruce Buller, 4413 Oakland Avenue South, Minneapolis, Hennepin County, effective January 1, 1975, for a term expiring January 1, 1978.

Curtis Chivers, 4017 Clinton Avenue South, Minneapolis, Hennepin County, effective January 1, 1975, for a term expiring January 1, 1978.

Mrs. Helen Gamradt, 305 Northwest Sixth Street, Little Falls, Morrison County, effective January 1, 1975, for a term expiring January 1, 1978.

Sincerely,  
Wendell R. Anderson, Governor

February 25, 1975

The Honorable Alec Olson  
President of the Senate  
State of Minnesota

Dear Sir:

The following appointment to the State Board of Community Colleges is hereby submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Mrs. Toyse A. Kyle, 1630 South Sixth Street, Minneapolis, Hennepin County, effective February 25, 1975, for a term expiring July 1, 1980.

Sincerely,  
Wendell R. Anderson, Governor

February 26, 1975

The Honorable Alec Olson  
President of the Senate  
State of Minnesota

Dear Sir:

The following appointment to the Occupational Safety and Health Review Board is hereby submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Kenneth Sovereign, 4415 Olson Lake Trail North, North St. Paul, Ramsey County, effective February 26, 1975, for a term expiring August 29, 1975.

Sincerely,  
Wendell R. Anderson, Governor

The appointments were referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

February 28, 1975

The Honorable Alec Olson  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

I have the honor to inform you that I have received, approved, signed and deposited in the office of the Secretary of State the following Senate Files:

S. F. No. 64, An Act relating to veterans affairs, providing additional money for veterans bonus payments, appropriating money.

S. F. No. 321, An Act relating to the city of Brooklyn Park; validating actions and proceedings in connection with the initiation, construction, and financing of municipal improvements.

Sincerely,  
Wendell R. Anderson, Governor

#### INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

Messrs. Gearty, Stokowski and Hansen, Mel introduced—

S. F. No. 640: A bill for an act relating to the city of Minneapolis; authorizing housing finance program; providing for the issuance of limited general obligation bonds.

Referred to the Committee on Metropolitan and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. North, Fitzsimons and Chmielewski introduced—

S. F. No. 641: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; reg-

istration and taxation; vehicles exempt from license fees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 168.012, Subdivision 1, and by adding subdivisions; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 168.012, Subdivisions 1a, and 1b.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation.

Messrs. Jensen, Patton and Josefson introduced—

S. F. No. 642: A bill for an act relating to water resources; requiring a substantial beneficial public purpose be served in order to classify waters as public; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 105.38.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Mr. Perpich, A. J. introduced—

S. F. No. 643: A bill for an act relating to retirement; police pensions in the city of Eveleth; amending Laws 1965, Chapter 636, as amended, by adding a section.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Stokowski, Gearty and Ogdahl introduced—

S. F. No. 644: A bill for an act relating to the city of Minneapolis; retirement for city officials and employees; retirement allowance, deferred compensation, combined service annuity, disability allowances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 422A.16, Subdivision 8, and by adding a subdivision; and 422A.18, Subdivision 3; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 422A.18, Subdivision 6.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Perpich, A. J. introduced—

S. F. No. 645: A bill for an act relating to the issuance by the city of Two Harbors in Lake county of bonds for the betterment of its municipal electric utility and the pledge of the net revenues of such utility for the payment thereof.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Conzemius, O'Neill and McCutcheon introduced—

S. F. No. 646: A bill for an act relating to taxation, providing for valuation of certain real property; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 273.11, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Jensen, Larson and Renneke introduced—

S. F. No. 647: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing an exemption for certain agricultural pollution control property; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 272.02, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws. Mr. Moe questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Hansen, Baldy introduced—

S. F. No. 648: A bill for an act relating to elections; date of primary elections; date of filing of affidavit of candidacy; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 202.02; 202.04, Subdivision 1; 202.19; 203.05; 203.45, Subdivision 2; 203.46; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 203.53, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation.

Messrs. Purfeerst, Conzemius and Berg introduced—

S. F. No. 649: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; collective bargaining; agricultural marketing and bargaining associations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Chapter 17, by adding a section; and Section 17.694, Subdivision 5, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Mr. Moe, by request, introduced—

S. F. No. 650: A bill for an act relating to appropriations; appropriating funds for the payment of certain retirement benefits.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Fitzsimons introduced—

S. F. No. 651: A bill for an act relating to state lands; authorizing the conveyance of certain state conservation area lands in Roseau county to Nordland Free Lutheran church; amending Laws 1974, Chapter 141, Section 1.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Messrs. North, Ogdahl and Gearty introduced—

S. F. No. 652: A bill for an act relating to the organization, operation and financing of state government; establishing an indirect cost billing system; requiring revolving fund billing rates by the commissioner of finance; transferring certain powers and duties relating to finance and recordation from and to the department of finance; appropriating money; amending Minnesota

Statutes 1974, Sections 3.30, Subdivision 2; 16.141, Subdivisions 2 and 3a; 16.19; 16A.132, Subdivision 3; 16A.15; Subdivision 3; 16A.17; 16A.28; 16A.58; 84A.04; 93.12; 124.28, Subdivision 2; 276.09; 276.10; 293.10; 348.04; 354A.07; 379.05; 379.07; 379.09; 385.21; and 473F.07, Subdivisions 1 and 2; and Chapter 16A, by adding sections; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 10.16; 16A.09; 16A.125; and 136.06.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Hansen, Baldy introduced—

S. F. No. 653: A bill for an act relating to the city of Albert Lea; placing the chief of police under the public employees police and fire fund.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Hansen, Mel; Gearty and Ueland introduced—

S. F. No. 654: A bill for an act relating to education; textbooks; restricting use of certain books as texts or required reading; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 126.03.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Schrom introduced—

S. F. No. 655: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; restrictions upon the taking of pheasants; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 100.27, Subdivision 5; and 100.28, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Messrs. Kleinbaum, Ogdahl and McCutcheon introduced—

S. F. No. 656: A bill for an act relating to retirement; authorizing purchase of service credit by certain members of the Minnesota state retirement system.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Hughes and Sillers introduced—

S. F. No. 657: A bill for an act relating to school districts; lowering the age of retired employees for whom a school board may purchase medical insurance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 123.72.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Keefe, J. and Schaaf introduced—

S. F. No. 658: A bill for an act relating to public safety; establish-

ing standards for providing arms to private security guards; providing a penalty.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation. Mr. Hansen, Baldy questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Hanson, R. and Moe introduced—

S. F. No. 659: A bill for an act relating to economic development; authorizing planning grants by the department of economic development; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

Messrs. Josefson, Laufenburger and Frederick introduced—

S. F. No. 660: A bill for an act relating to highways; limiting the number of rest area and wayside facilities on the trunk highway system.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Hansen, Mel and Schaaf introduced—

S. F. No. 661: A bill for an act relating to elections; requiring the secretary of state to train all election officials; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation.

Messrs. Wegener, Jensen and Davies introduced—

S. F. No. 662: A bill for an act relating to domestic relations; contracts and conveyances between husband and wife; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 500.19, by adding a subdivision; and 519.06.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Wegener; Olson, J. L. and Willet introduced—

S. F. No. 663: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; dairy industry unfair trade practices; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 32A.05, Subdivision 4; 32A.06, Subdivision 1; 32A.07; and 32A.09, Subdivision 6.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Messrs. Hughes, Sillers and Kleinbaum introduced—

S. F. No. 664: A bill for an act relating to education; school

districts; severance pay; authorizing matching funds; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 465.72.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Willet introduced—

S. F. No. 665: A bill for an act relating to the town of Taylor; restoring state payments lost because of failure of county auditor to forward report.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Solon and Doty introduced—

S. F. No. 666: A bill for an act relating to education; school boards; requiring inservice training for board members; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Solon, Doty and Keefe, S. introduced—

S. F. No. 667: A bill for an act relating to labor relations; rights of public employees; dues check off; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 179.65, Subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

Messrs. Solon, Doty and Keefe, S. introduced—

S. F. No. 668: A bill for an act relating to workmen's compensation; providing workmen's compensation coverage for members of the legislature; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 176.011, Subdivision 9.

Referred to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

Mr. Arnold introduced—

S. F. No. 669: A bill for an act relating to the county of Itasca; providing for government of certain townships for hospital district; amending Laws 1974, Chapter 217, Section 1.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Mr. Arnold introduced—

S. F. No. 670: A bill for an act relating to taxation; inheritance tax; providing certain exemption for widowers; increasing exemption for widows; providing for transfer of contents of safe deposit box without notice to county treasurer; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 291.05; and 291.20, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.



Mr. Arnold introduced—

S. F. No. 671: A bill for an act relating to Voyageurs National Park; establishing and empowering an advisory committee thereon.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Messrs. Stassen and Hughes and Mrs. Brataas introduced—

S. F. No. 672: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; establishing an information bureau for senior citizens under the governor's citizens council on aging; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 256.975, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Brataas and Mr. Hughes introduced—

S. F. No. 673: A bill for an act relating to certain contracts of political subdivisions and school districts; removing the personal liability of public officials therefor; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 275.27.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Hughes, Stassen and Gearty introduced—

S. F. No. 674: A bill for an act relating to administrative procedure; requiring agency estimates of the cost of proposed rules to local public bodies; delaying the effective date of rules involving costs to local public bodies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 15.0412, by adding subdivisions.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Doty and Solon introduced—

S. F. No. 675: A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating the relationship between gasoline retail dealers and other petroleum enterprises; providing penalties.

Referred to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

Mr. Stassen, by request, introduced—

S. F. No. 676: A bill for an act relating to taxation; exempting certain square dance admissions from sales taxation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 297A.25, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Hughes, Stassen and Keefe, S. introduced—

S. F. No. 677: A bill for an act relating to small business; autho-

rizing the commissioners of administration and economic development to set aside certain state procurement from normal bidding procedures, for the exclusive use of small business concerns owned and operated by the socially and economically disadvantaged.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations. Mr. Hansen, Baldy questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Messrs. Stassen, McCutcheon and Knutson introduced—

S. F. No. 678: A bill for an act relating to public safety; requiring the commissioner of public safety to promulgate rules and regulations governing public or private shooting ranges; prescribing penalties.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation.

Messrs. Schrom and Hanson, R. introduced—

S. F. No. 679: A bill for an act relating to public safety; regulating the use of explosives; authorizing sheriffs and certain chiefs of police to issue permits for the use of explosives; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 299F.73; and 299F.75.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation.

Messrs. Olson, H. D.; Spear and Bernhagen introduced—

S. F. No. 680: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing for delayed assessment of homesteads.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. O'Neill, Mrs. Brataas and Mr. Solon introduced—

S. F. No. 681: A bill for an act relating to education; state aid payments to school districts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 124.17, Subdivision 1; 124.223; and 124.32, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Perpich, A. J.; Conzemius and Renneke introduced—

S. F. No. 682: A bill for an act relating to cities; requiring consideration of options to and a referendum on annexation; prohibiting annexation without provision for municipal services; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 414.031, Subdivisions 3 and 4, and by adding a subdivision; 414.032, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 414.033, by adding a subdivision; 414.034, Subdivisions 1 and 2; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 414.031, Subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Wegener, Kleinbaum and Hanson, R. introduced—

S. F. No. 683: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; fees chargeable under the dairy industry unfair trade practices act; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 32A.05, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Messrs. Hansen, Mel; Schrom and Hanson, R. introduced—

S. F. No. 684: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; notice of promiscuous taking of fish; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 97.48, Subdivision 16.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Mr. Knutson introduced—

S. F. No. 685: A bill for an act relating to real estate; providing for the extent of a lien; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 514.03, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Purfeerst introduced—

S. F. No. 686: A bill for an act relating to retirement; survivor's benefits payable by the firemen's relief association of the city of Faribault; amending Laws 1947, Chapter 43, Section 23, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Bang and Davies introduced—

S. F. No. 687: A bill for an act relating to credit unions; allowing credit union members to vote by mail for officers and amendments; expanding the field of credit union membership; allowing credit unions certain powers with respect to dividends; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 52.02; 52.05; 52.07 and 52.18.

Referred to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Bang and Davies introduced—

S. F. No. 688: A bill for an act relating to credit unions; permitting Minnesota central credit union to purchase shares of and make deposits in United States central credit union; permitting credit unions to deposit the reserve in balances due from United States central credit union; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 52.04 and 52.17.

Referred to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Nelson and Spear introduced—

S. F. No. 689: A bill for an act relating to local government; providing for the creation and operation of community councils in the city of Minneapolis.

Referred to the Committee on Metropolitan and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. Keefe, S. and Conzemius introduced—

S. F. No. 690: A bill for an act relating to insurance; requiring certain group insurance policies and plans to provide certain benefits for outpatient mental health treatment.

Referred to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

Messrs. Borden, O'Neill and Kleinbaum introduced—

S. F. No. 691: A bill for an act relating to the taxation of railroads; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Chapter 270, by adding sections; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 295.01, Subdivisions 2 and 3; 295.02; 295.03; 295.04; 295.05; 295.12; 295.13; and 295.14.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Schmitz introduced—

S. F. No. 692: A bill for an act relating to Scott county; appropriating funds to the Scott county historical society for completion of the Minnesota Valley restoration project.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Mr. Hanson, R. introduced—

S. F. No. 693: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; closing the season on pheasants in Becker and Otter Tail counties for two years.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Messrs. Blatz, Knutson and Ashbach introduced—

S. F. No. 694: A bill for an act relating to appropriations; appropriating money for distribution to school districts as a replacement for certain transportation aids.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Olhoft, Dunn and Olson, H. D. introduced—

S. F. No. 695: A bill for an act to regulate the vertical integration in agriculture; providing penalties.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Mr. Spear introduced—

S. F. No. 696: A bill for an act relating to corrections; permitting inmates of state prisons to qualify for unemployment compensation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 268.04, Subdivision 12; and 268.07, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections. Mr. Hansen, Baldy questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Solon and Bang introduced—

S. F. No. 697: A bill for an act relating to commerce; requiring that tents and sleeping bags be flame resistant; providing a penalty.

Referred to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Solon and Bang introduced—

S. F. No. 698: A bill for an act relating to notaries public; adopting the uniform notary act; providing penalties; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Chapter 359.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Renneke, Schrom and Purfeerst introduced—

S. F. No. 699: A bill for an act relating to drainage; clarifying the power of county boards to construct flood control projects under the drainage laws; transferring the administration of judicial ditches to county boards; improving the power of county boards to repair, assess benefits and damages and construct laterals on county ditches; providing for appeal of decisions by a joint county ditch authority; providing a better procedure for abandonment of ditches in urban areas; providing for the termination of activities of conservancy districts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 106.011, Subdivisions 1, 4, 16 and 17; 106.015, Subdivision 5; 106.021, Subdivision 1; 106.031, Subdivision 1; 106.041; 106.091, Subdivision 1; 106.101, Subdivision 1; 106.121, Subdivision 8; 106.131; 106.141, Subdivision 2; 106.161; 106.171, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 106.191, Subdivision 3; 106.211; 106.221, Subdivision 1; 106.231, Subdivision 1; 106.251; 106.281; 106.291; 106.301; 106.321; 106.331; 106.401; 106.431, Subdivision 2; 106.471, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4 and 7; 106.501, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 106.511; 106.521; 106.531; 106.551; 106.561, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 106.601; 106.631, Subdivision 5; 106.651; 106.661; and 112.76; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 106.011, Subdivisions 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9; 106.015, Subdivisions 3 and 4; 106.021, Subdivision 5; 106.231, Subdivision 7; 111.01 to 111.42.

Referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

**MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE**

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House Files, herewith transmitted: H. F. Nos. 64, 103, 161, 276 and 296.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Transmitted February 27, 1975

**FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS**

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

H. F. No. 64: A bill for an act relating to certain lending institutions, and requiring interest payment on moneys received for payment of real estate taxes and insurance coverage; prescribing penalties.

H. F. No. 103: A bill for an act relating to securities; brokers-dealers; creating an exemption from usury for margin accounts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 334.19.

H. F. No. 161: A bill for an act relating to occupational safety and health; authorizing certain actions against an employer to be brought by the commissioner in the district court; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 182.669, Subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 182.669, Subdivisions 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6.

H. F. No. 276: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; dairy industry unfair trade practices; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 32A.05, Subdivision 4; 32A.06, Subdivision 1; 32A.07; and 32A.09, Subdivision 6.

H. F. No. 296: A bill for an act relating to the executive council; empowering it to grant assistance in conjunction with federal disaster relief programs; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 9.061, Subdivision 1.

**REPORTS OF COMMITTEES**

Mr. Coleman moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Perpich, A. J. from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws, to which was re-referred

H. F. No. 136: A bill for an act relating to taxation; changing date and method of distribution of homestead credit aid and certain other aids; providing for certification of homestead credit on abstract of tax list; defining census for purpose of levy limi-

tation; providing for payment date of certain taconite taxes and taconite and taconite railroad tax aids; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 124.03, Subdivision 3; 270.11, Subdivision 2; 273.13, Subdivision 15a; 275.29; 275.53, Subdivision 1; 294.26; 298.27; 298.28, Subdivision 1; 298.281, Subdivision 1; 298.282, Subdivision 4; and 298.32.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Perpich, A. J. from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws, to which was referred

S. F. No. 388: A bill for an act relating to taxation; treatment of certain employee retirement plans; eliminating any question of disqualification of the plans and related trusts because of increased contribution limits under the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended; otherwise preserving Minnesota tax treatment of the plans; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 290.01, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Laufenburger from the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation, to which was referred

S. F. No. 456: A bill for an act relating to education; defining qualified voters for school district elections; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 123.32, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 9, strike "*A qualified*" and insert "*An eligible*"

Page 1, line 16, strike "*qualified*" and insert "*eligible*"

Page 1, line 21, strike "*a*"

Page 2, line 1, after "*adopted*" insert "*for such school district*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Laufenburger from the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation, to which was referred

S. F. No. 429: A bill for an act relating to the Minnesota zoological garden; providing a means of public access to the garden at the time of its opening; directing the department of highways to improve a certain road to provide such public access; and appropriating money.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 24, after "*shall*" insert "*contract with the local municipalities to*"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Laufenburger from the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation, to which was referred

S. F. No. 331: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; definitions; equipment requirements and driving rules for motorcycle operators; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 168.011, by adding a subdivision; 169.01, Subdivision 4; 171.01, Subdivision 17; and 169.974, Subdivisions 2, 4 and 5.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 15, after "tractor" insert "*and those motorized bicycles with less than a one horsepower engine which are propelled with the assistance of human power*"

Page 3, line 1, after "freeway" strike "*or interstate; or*" and insert a period

Page 3, strike lines 2 and 3

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Laufenburger from the Committee on Transportation and General Legislation, to which was referred

S. F. No. 124: A bill for an act relating to highways; approaches to certain highways; furnishing of culverts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 160.18, Subdivision 1.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 12, after "authorities" insert "*, other than town boards and county boards,*"

Page 1, line 13, strike "*may*" and reinsert the stricken language

Page 1, line 15, after the period insert: "*A town board shall furnish one substantial culvert to an abutting owner in cases where the culvert is necessary for suitable approach to a town road, provided that at any annual town meeting the electors of any town may by resolution authorize the town board to require that all or part of the costs of the furnishing of any culvert on the town roads of such town be paid by the abutting owner. A county board, by resolution, shall, before furnishing any culverts after the effective date of this act, establish a policy for the furnishing of a culvert to an abutting owner when a culvert is necessary for suitable approach to a county and state aid road, and such policy may include provisions for the payment of all or part of the costs of furnishing such culverts by the abutting landowner.*"



And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted.  
Report adopted.

Mr. Gearty from the Committee on Governmental Operations,  
to which was referred

S. F. No. 112: A bill for an act relating to veterans; exercise of preference in public appointments or promotions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 43.30; and Chapter 197, by adding a section; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 197.45.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 10, strike "Notwithstanding sections"

Page 1, line 11, strike "197.46 to 197.48,"

Page 1, line 13, strike "and municipal"

Page 1, lines 14 and 15, strike "or any municipal civil service ordinance or rule"

Page 1, lines 16 and 17, strike "honorably discharged or"

Page 1, line 17, after "separated" insert "*under honorable conditions*"

Page 1, line 18, after "for" insert "*181 consecutive days*"

Page 1, line 19, strike "other than training purposes"

Page 2, line 13, after "veteran" insert "*, if he so elects,*"

Page 2, line 16, after "grade" insert "*without the addition of the credit points*"

Page 2, line 24, after "veterans" insert "*, if each so elects,*"

Page 2, line 26, after "grade" insert "*without the addition of the credit points*"

Page 2, strike line 32 and insert the following:

*"All governmental agencies when notifying the applicant that he has passed the examination, shall notify the applicant of his examination score and shall also notify the applicant that if he is a veteran he may elect to use his unused veterans' preference to augment his passing rating. The preference given by this section may only be used to secure employment or appointment. There shall be no preference for use in the securing of positions to be filled by means other than through open competitive examinations."*

Page 3, strike lines 1 to 6

Page 3, lines 7 and 8, strike "widows or widowers" and insert "*surviving spouses*"

Page 3, line 8, after "veterans" insert "*until their remarriage*"

Page 3, line 14, strike "by the commissioner or municipal official"

Page 3, line 16, strike "rated or certified" and insert "*adjudicated*"

Page 3, line 16, after "as" insert "*having a compensable service connected disability*"

Page 3, line 17, strike "disabled"

Page 3, line 22, strike "for promotion or"

Page 3, line 25, strike "*municipal official*" and insert "*in the case of local governmental agencies, the appropriate local personnel officer*"

Page 3, line 31, after "in" and before "appointment" insert "*employment and*"

Page 3, line 31, strike "*to and promotion*"

Page 3, line 32, after "in" insert "*employment and*"

Page 3, line 32, strike "and" at the end of the line

Page 4, line 1, strike "*promotion*"

Page 4, line 1, after "service" insert "*laws, charter provisions,*"

Page 4, line 3, strike "*municipality or*"

Page 4, line 3, strike "an" and insert "*a law, charter,*"

Page 4, line 5, after the period, add "*Sections 197.46 to 197.48 shall not apply to the state civil service.*"

Page 4, after line 5, add three new sections as follows:

"Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 44.14, is amended to read:

44.14 [VETERANS PREFERENCE.] This chapter does not exclude or modify the application of ~~sections 197.45 and section 197.46~~ and section 2 of this act, known as the veterans preference law.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 197.46, is amended to read:

197.46 [VETERANS PREFERENCE ACT; REMOVAL FORBIDDEN; RIGHT OF MANDAMUS.] Any person whose rights may be in any way prejudiced contrary to any of the provisions of this section, shall be entitled to a writ of mandamus to remedy the wrong. No person holding a position by appointment or employment in the State of Minnesota or in the several counties, cities, towns, school districts and all other political subdivisions or agencies thereof, who is an honorably discharged veteran, shall be removed from such position or employment except for incompetency or misconduct shown after a hearing, upon due notice, upon stated charges, in writing.

Any veteran who has been notified of the intent to discharge him from an appointed position or employment pursuant to this section shall be notified in writing of such intent to discharge and

of his right to request a hearing within 60 days of receipt of the notice of intent to discharge. The failure of a veteran to request a hearing within the provided 60-day period shall constitute a waiver of his right to a hearing. Such failure shall also waive all other available legal remedies for reinstatement.

Request for a hearing concerning such a discharge shall be made in writing and submitted by mail or personal service to the employment office of the concerned employer or other appropriate office or person.

In all governmental subdivisions having an established civil service board or commission, or merit system authority, such hearing for removal or discharge shall be held before such civil service board or commission or merit system authority. Where no such civil service board or commission or merit system authority exists, such hearing shall be held by a board of three persons appointed as follows: one by the governmental subdivision, one by the veteran, and the third by the two so selected. In the event the two persons so selected do not appoint the third person within ten days after the appointment of the last of the two, then the judge of the district court of the county wherein the proceeding is pending, or if there be more than one judge in said county then any judge in chambers, shall have jurisdiction to appoint, and upon application of either or both of the two so selected shall appoint, the third person to the board and the person so appointed by the judge with the two first selected shall constitute the board. The veteran may appeal from the decision of the board upon the charges to the district court by causing written notice of appeal, stating the grounds thereof, to be served upon the governmental subdivision or officer making the charges within 15 days after notice of the decision and by filing the original notice of appeal with proof of service thereof in the office of the clerk of the district court within ten days after service thereof. Nothing in ~~sections 197.45 and section 197.46~~ or *section 2 of this act* shall be construed to apply to the position of private secretary, teacher, superintendent of schools, or one chief deputy of any elected official or head of a department, or to any person holding a strictly confidential relation to the appointing officer. The burden of establishing such relationship shall be upon the appointing officer in all proceedings and actions relating thereto.

All officers, boards, commissions, and employees shall conform to, comply with, and aid in all proper ways in carrying into effect the provisions of ~~sections 197.45 and section 197.46 and section 2 of this act~~. Any wilful violation of such sections by officers, officials, or employees is a misdemeanor.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 197.481, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

197.481 [ENFORCEMENT.] Subdivision 1. [PETITION.] A veteran who has been denied rights by the state or any political subdivision, municipality, or other public agency of the state under sections 43.30, ~~197.45~~, 197.46, ~~197.47~~, and 197.48 may petition the commissioner of veterans affairs for an order direct-

ing the agency to grant the veteran such relief the commissioner finds justified by said statutes.

The petition shall contain:

(1) The name, address and acknowledged signature of the veteran.

(2) The names and addresses of all agencies and persons that will be directly affected if the petition is granted.

(3) A concise statement of the facts giving rise to the veteran's rights and a concise statement showing the manner in which rights were denied.

(4) A statement of the relief requested."

Renumber the remaining section

Page 4, line 6, strike "*Section*" and insert "*Sections*"

Page 4, line 6, after "*197.45*" insert "*and 197.47 are*" and strike "*, is*" at the end of the line

Page 4, after line 7, add a new section to read:

"Sec. 7. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] *This act is effective the day following final enactment.*"

Further amend by striking the title and inserting: "A bill for an act relating to veterans; limiting the exercise of preference in public appointments or promotions; standardizing the use of veterans preference throughout the state; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 43.30; 44.14; 197.46; 197.481, subdivision 1; Chapter 197, by adding a section; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 197.45 and 197.47."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Conzemius from the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections, to which was referred

S. F. No. 118: A bill for an act relating to pharmacy and drugs; authorizing pharmacists to dispense generically equivalent drugs in lieu of prescribed brand name legend drugs unless the prescribing practitioner instructs otherwise; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 151.01, by adding subdivisions; 151.21; 151.37, Subdivision 2; 151.38; and Chapter 151, by adding a section.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 151.01, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

*Subd. 24.* [BRAND NAME.] "*Brand name*" means the registered trademark name given to a drug by its manufacturer, labeler or distributor.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 151.01, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

*Subd. 25. [GENERIC NAME.] "Generic name" means the established name as defined pursuant to section 352 of the federal act.*

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 151.21, is amended to read:

*151.21 [SUBSTITUTION PROHIBITED.] Subdivision 1. Except as provided in subdivision 2, it shall be unlawful for any pharmacist, assistant pharmacist, or pharmacist intern who dispenses prescriptions, drugs, and medicines to substitute an article different from the one ordered, or deviate in any manner from the requirements of an order or prescription without the approval of the prescriber.*

*Subd. 2. A pharmacist who receives a prescription for a brand name legend drug may, with the written or verbal consent of the purchaser, dispense any drug having the same generic name as the brand name drug prescribed if the prescriber has not written in his own handwriting "dispense as written" or "D.A.W." on the prescription or, when an oral prescription is given, has not expressly indicated the prescription is to be dispensed as communicated. A pharmacist may not substitute a generically equivalent drug product unless, in the pharmacist's professional judgment, the substituted drug is therapeutically equivalent and interchangeable to the prescribed drug. A pharmacist shall notify the purchaser if he is dispensing a drug other than the brand name drug prescribed.*

*Subd. 3. A pharmacist dispensing a drug under the provisions of subdivision 2 shall not dispense a drug of higher cost than the brand name drug prescribed. Any difference between the wholesale cost to the pharmacist of the drug dispensed and the brand name drug prescribed shall be passed on to the purchaser.*

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1974, Chapter 151, is amended by adding a section to read:

*[151.361] [MANUFACTURER DISCLOSURE.] The manufacturer, packager, or distributor of any human use legend drug sold, delivered, or offered for sale in the state of Minnesota must have printed on the label on the immediate container of the drug the name and address of the manufacturer of the finished dosage form of the drug. "Finished dosage form" is that form of the drug which is or is intended to be dispensed or administered to the patient and requires no further manufacturing or processing other than packaging, reconstitution, or labeling. Failure to comply with this requirement shall subject the drug to embargo in accordance with section 151.38.*

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 151.38, is amended to read:

*151.38 [EMBARGOES.] (1) Whenever a duly authorized agent of the board finds or has probable cause to believe that any drug*

or medicine is adulterated, or so misbranded as to be dangerous or fraudulent , or is being sold, delivered, or offered for sale in violation of section 4 of this act, he shall affix thereto an appropriate marking, giving notice that ~~such the~~ article is, or is suspected of being, adulterated ~~or~~ , misbranded or sold, delivered, or offered for sale in violation of section 4 of this act and has been embargoed, and warning that it is unlawful for any person to remove or dispose of ~~such the~~ embargoed article by sale or otherwise without permission from the agent or the court.

(2) When an embargoed article has been found by ~~such the~~ agent to be adulterated, or misbranded , or is being sold, delivered, or offered for sale in violation of section 4 of this act, the board shall, within 30 days, petition the district court in whose jurisdiction the article is embargoed for an order of condemnation. When an embargoed article is not so found by the agent he shall remove the marking.

(3) If the court finds that an embargoed article is adulterated or misbranded , or is being sold, delivered, or offered for sale in violation of section 4 of this act, ~~such the~~ article shall be destroyed at the expense of the claimant thereof, who shall also pay all court costs and fees, storage and other proper expenses; ~~provided, that when .~~ If the adulteration or misbranding, or lack of manufacturer disclosure as required by section 4 of this act can be corrected by proper labeling or processing of the article, or by filing the proper documents with the court, the court, after ~~such the~~ costs, fees, and expenses have been paid and a sufficient bond has been executed, may order that ~~such the~~ article be delivered to the claimant for ~~such labeling or~~ , processing or filing under supervision of an agent of the board. The expense of ~~such the~~ supervision shall be paid by claimant. The bond shall be returned to the claimant on the representation to the court by the board that the article is no longer in violation of this chapter and that the expenses of ~~such~~ supervision have been paid."

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 6, after "otherwise;" insert "providing for manufacturer disclosure;"

Page 1, line 8, strike "151.37, Subdivision"

Page 1, line 9, strike "2;"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Conzemius from the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections, to which was referred

S. F. No. 240: A bill for an act relating to parole and probation; authorizing the purchase of parole and probation services from public and private agencies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 243.09, Subdivisions 1 and 3.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 22, after "*with*" and before "*public*" insert "*in-dividuals and*"

Page 1, line 23, strike "*including the county courts,*"

Page 2, line 1, strike "*by such*" and insert "*under the*"

Page 2, line 1, after "*Every*" strike "*such*"

Page 2, line 2, strike "*such*" and insert "*the*"

Page 2, line 2, strike "*as*"

Page 2, line 4, after "*2*" strike "*, and,*" and insert a period

Page 2, line 4, after "*addition*" insert "*, every agent or person*"

Page 2, line 7, strike the comma and insert "*. Agents shall provide*"

Page 2, line 8, strike "*including providing*"

Page 2, line 8, strike "*such*"

Page 2, line 9, after "*employment*" insert a comma

Page 2, line 9, strike "*the*" and insert "*shall*"

Page 2, line 9, strike "*of*" and insert "*relevant*"

Page 2, line 10, strike "*such*"

Page 2, line 10, after "*investigations*" insert "*and studies of persons under supervision upon the request of the commissioner or the authority.*"

Page 2, line 10, strike "*into the circumstances and conditions*"

Page 2, strike lines 11 through 13

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Conzemius from the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections, to which was referred

S. F. No. 242: A bill for an act relating to corrections; defining powers and duties of the commissioner of corrections; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 241.01, Subdivision 5a, and by adding a subdivision; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 241.01, Subdivision 3.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Conzemius from the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections, to which was referred

S. F. No. 243: A bill for an act relating to corrections; retainability of funds received for use of facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 241.01, Subdivision 7; and 260.151, Subdivision 1.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 18, after "*cancel*" strike the comma and insert "*until the end of the fiscal year immediately following the fiscal year in which the funds were received. The funds*"

Page 1, line 19, strike "*the fiscal year in which paid*" and insert "*that period*"

Page 2, line 9, after "court" strike ", or," and insert a period

Page 2, line 12, strike "such" and insert "a"

Page 2, line 12, after "minor" insert "*coming within its jurisdiction*"

Page 2, line 20, strike the comma and insert "*until the end of the fiscal year immediately following the fiscal year in which the funds were received. The funds*"

Page 2, line 21, strike "*the fiscal year in which paid*" and insert "*that period*"

Page 2, line 25, strike "such" and insert "these"

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 2, strike "retainability" and insert "providing for the retention"

Page 1, line 3, after "facilities" and before the semicolon insert "and provision of services to juvenile courts"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Coleman from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which were referred

H. F. Nos. 64, 161, 276 and 296 for comparison to companion Senate Files, reports the following House Files were found to have no companion Senate Files on Senate Calendars and are recommended to be re-referred to their respective Committees as follows:

H. F. No. 296 to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

H. F. Nos. 64 and 161 to the Committee on Labor and Commerce.

H. F. No. 276 to the Committee on Natural Resources and Agriculture.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.



**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS**

S. F. Nos. 388, 456, 331, 124, 112, 118, 240 and 242 were read the second time.

**SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS**

H. F. No. 136 was read the second time.

**MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS**

Mr. Olhofft moved that the name of Mr. Olson, J. L. be added as co-author to S. F. No. 210. The motion prevailed.

**THIRD READING OF SENATE BILLS**

S. F. No. 287: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; changing the name of Minnesota Memorial Hardwood State Forest; prescribing certain duties for the revisor of statutes.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 59 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Conzemius	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz
Bang	Doty	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Berg	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olhofft	Solon
Bernhagen	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Blatz	Gearty	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Borden	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Brataas	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Stumpf
Brown	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Chenoweth	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Chmielewski	Jensen	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Coleman	Josefson	Moe	Renneke	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 264: A bill for an act relating to St. Cloud; metropolitan transit commission; eliminating the wheelage tax; providing for an annual tax levy and the issuance of bonds; excepting the commission from competitive bidding requirements for certain purchases in 1975; amending Laws 1969, Chapter 1134, Section 10, by adding a section; repealing Laws 1969, Chapter 1134, Section 4.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 59 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Conzemius	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz
Bang	Doty	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Berg	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olhoft	Solon
Bernhagen	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Blatz	Gearty	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Borden	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Brataas	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Stumpf
Brown	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Chenoweth	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Chmielewski	Jensen	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Coleman	Josefson	Moe	Renneke	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 311: A bill for an act relating to unemployment compensation; allowing applicants to receive benefits in weeks they receive holiday pay; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 268.07, Subdivision 2; and 268.08, Subdivision 3.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 57 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Doty	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Bang	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olhoft	Solon
Berg	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Bernhagen	Gearty	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Borden	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Brataas	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Stumpf
Brown	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Chenoweth	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Chmielewski	Jensen	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Coleman	Josefson	Moe	Renneke	
Conzemius	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf	
Davies	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 277: A bill for an act relating to elections; registration of voters; requiring corroborating identification; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 201.061, Subdivision 3.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 58 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Brown	Frederick	Keefe, J.	Merriam
Ashbach	Chenoweth	Gearty	Keefe, S.	Milton
Bang	Chmielewski	Hansen, Baldy	Kirchner	Moe
Berg	Coleman	Hansen, Mel	Kleinbaum	Nelson
Bernhagen	Conzemius	Hanson, R.	Kowalczyk	North
Blatz	Davies	Humphrey	Larson	Ogdahl
Borden	Doty	Jensen	Laufenburger	Olhoft
Brataas	Dunn	Josefson	McCutcheon	Olson, A. G.

Olson, H. D.	Perpich, G.	Schmitz	Stassen	Wegener
Olson, J. L.	Purfeerst	Schrom	Stokowski	Willet
O'Neill	Renneke	Solon	Stumpf	
Perpich, A. J.	Schaaf	Spear	Ueland	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 282: A bill for an act relating to towns; removing the levy limit for road and bridge purposes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 164.04, Subdivision 2.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 57 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Conzemius	Keefe, J.	Ogdahl	Schrom
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, S.	Olhoft	Solon
Bang	Doty	Kleinbaum	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Berg	Dunn	Kowalczyk	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Bernhagen	Frederick	Larson	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Blatz	Gearty	Laufenburger	O'Neill	Stumpf
Borden	Hansen, Baldy	Lewis	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Brataas	Hansen, Mel	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Brown	Hanson, R.	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Chenoweth	Humphrey	Moe	Renneke	
Chmielewski	Jensen	Nelson	Schaaf	
Coleman	Josefson	North	Schmitz	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 286: A bill for an act relating to towns; town levy for fire protection or police protection; removing the limitation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 365.19.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 58, and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Conzemius	Keefe, J.	North	Schmitz
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, S.	Ogdahl	Schrom
Bang	Doty	Kirchner	Olhoft	Solon
Berg	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Bernhagen	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Blatz	Gearty	Larson	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Borden	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	O'Neill	Stumpf
Brataas	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Brown	Hanson, R.	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Chenoweth	Humphrey	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Chmielewski	Jensen	Moe	Renneke	
Coleman	Josefson	Nelson	Schaaf	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 422: A bill for an act relating to town government; authorizing town boards to fix the compensation of town asses-

sors without limitation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 273.04 and 367.05, Subdivision 1.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 59, and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Conzemius	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz
Bang	Doty	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Berg	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olhoff	Solon
Bernhagen	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Blatz	Garty	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Borden	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Brataas	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Stumpf
Brown	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Chenoweth	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Chmielewski	Jensen	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Coleman	Josefson	Moe	Renneke	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 348: A bill for an act relating to insurance; modifying regulations of farmers and township mutual insurance companies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 67A.01; 67A.03; 67A.06; 67A.07; 67A.09; 67A.10; 67A.11, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 67A.12, Subdivision 4; 67A.13; 67A.14, Subdivisions 1 and 5; 67A.17 by adding a subdivision; 67A.18, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 67A.19; 67A.21; 67A.23; 67A.29, Subdivision 2; 67A.31, Subdivision 2; and Chapter 67A by adding a section; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Sections 67A.12, Subdivision 3; 67A.14, Subdivisions 2, 3, 4 and 6; 67A.16; 67A.18, Subdivision 3; 67A.-22; 67A.30, Subdivision 2; and 67A.33.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 58 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Conzemius	Keefe, J.	North	Schmitz
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, S.	Ogdahl	Schrom
Bang	Doty	Kirchner	Olhoff	Solon
Berg	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Bernhagen	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Blatz	Garty	Larson	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Borden	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	O'Neill	Stumpf
Brataas	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Brown	Hanson, R.	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Chenoweth	Humphrey	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Chmielewski	Jensen	Moe	Renneke	
Coleman	Josefson	Nelson	Schaaf	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### THIRD READING OF HOUSE BILLS

H. F. No. 173: A bill for an act relating to cooperatives; content of articles of incorporation; increasing the amount of authorized dividends on capital stock; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 308.06, Subdivision 2.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 59 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Conzemius	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz
Bang	Doty	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Berg	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olhoff	Solon
Bernhagen	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Blatz	Gearty	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Borden	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Brataas	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Stumpf
Brown	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Chenoweth	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Chmielewski	Jensen	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Coleman	Josefson	Moe	Renneke	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

H. F. No. 145: A bill for an act relating to cooperative associations; authorizing an association's board of directors to set aside part of its net income for the purpose of creating a capital reserve; amending Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 308.12, Subdivision 1.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 58 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Davies	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz
Ashbach	Doty	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Bang	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olhoff	Solon
Berg	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Bernhagen	Gearty	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Blatz	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Borden	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Stumpf
Brataas	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Perpich, A. J.	Ueland
Brown	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Wegener
Chenoweth	Jensen	Milton	Purfeerst	Willet
Chmielewski	Josefson	Moe	Renneke	
Conzemius	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### CALENDAR OF ORDINARY MATTERS

S. F. No. 371: A bill for an act relating to the duties of the

coroner in St. Louis county; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 390.22.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 57 and nays 1, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Davies	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz
Ashbach	Doty	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Bang	Dunn	Kleinbaum	Olhoft	Solon
Berg	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Bernhagen	Gearly	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Blatz	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stumpf
Borden	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Ueland
Brataas	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Perpich, A. J.	Wegener
Brown	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, G.	Willet
Chenoweth	Jensen	Milton	Purfeerst	
Chmielewski	Josefson	Moe	Renneke	
Conzemius	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf	

Mr. Stokowski voted in the negative.

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

H. F. No. 112: A bill for an act relating to state lands; authorizing the conveyance of certain state lands in Carlton county to the city of Moose Lake, Minnesota.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question being taken on the passage of the bill,

And the roll being called, there were yeas 60 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Arnold	Conzemius	Josefson	Moe	Renneke
Ashbach	Davies	Keefe, J.	Nelson	Schaaf
Bang	Doty	Keefe, S.	North	Schmitz
Berg	Dunn	Kirchner	Ogdahl	Schrom
Bernhagen	Fitzsimons	Kleinbaum	Olhoft	Solon
Blatz	Frederick	Kowalczyk	Olson, A. G.	Spear
Borden	Gearly	Larson	Olson, H. D.	Stassen
Brataas	Hansen, Baldy	Laufenburger	Olson, J. L.	Stokowski
Brown	Hansen, Mel	Lewis	O'Neill	Stumpf
Chenoweth	Hanson, R.	McCutcheon	Purfeerst	Ueland
Chmielewski	Humphrey	Merriam	Perpich, A. J.	Wegener
Coleman	Jensen	Milton	Perpich, G.	Willet

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

#### MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED

Mr. Coleman moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 11:00 o'clock a.m., Thursday, March 6, 1975. The motion prevailed.

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate